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Overview
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 FAQ’s Follow up (Webinar #1)
– To include introduction of Resource Documents (templates)

 Links to resources:
– PS21-2103 Notice of Funding Opportunity

Webinar #1 Slides
– NOFO FAQs
– Workplan Templates:

• Components 1 & 2
• Component 3

– Budget templates:
• Sample SF424A
• OFR Budget Guidance

 Live Q & A
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https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/search-grants.html?keywords=CDC-RFA-PS21-2103
https://www.cdc.gov/hepatitis/policy/pdfs/CDC-RFA-PS21-2103_Presentation-508.pdf
https://www.cdc.gov/hepatitis/policy/FO-CDC-RFA-PS21-2103_FAQs.htm
https://www.cdc.gov/hepatitis/policy/docs/Sample-Work-Evaluation-Plan-Template-Comp-1-2.docx
https://www.cdc.gov/hepatitis/policy/docs/Sample-Work-Evaluation-Plan-Template-Comp-3.docx
https://www.cdc.gov/hepatitis/policy/pdfs/Sample-Budget-Form-SF424A.pdf
https://www.cdc.gov/hepatitis/policy/pdfs/Budget-Preparation-Guidance.pdf


FAQs from Webinar #1
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The NOFO doesn't specify award floors or ceilings for 
the 3 components. Can you give any recommendations of 
the maximum that a jurisdiction can request in these categories?

• The estimated average year 1 funding amounts listed in the PS21-2103 
funding opportunity announcement for Components 1, 2, and 3 are 
neither funding floors nor funding ceilings.
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Can you provide guidance for the awards you have in mind for the 
activities that are contingent on funding?

• Within the same Component, budget details for elements “contingent on 
funding” should be detailed separately from elements not contingent on 
funding. 

• No estimated average funding amounts for year 1 are provided for 
Component 1 and 2 elements that are “contingent on funding”; therefore, 
applicants should request what funds they believe are necessary to 
complete these elements (e.g. 1.3, 2.2, and 2.3).



Can this funding support the procurement of hepatitis C test kits for 
high impact sites?

• Yes, funding can be used to purchase test kits under Components 2 and 3.
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Regarding page limit of the application, the instructions state that 
the Narrative (inclusive of the Background, Approach, Purpose, 
Outcomes, Strategies & Activities, Collaborations, Target 
Populations & Health Disparities, Evaluation and Performance 
Measurement Plan including Data Management Plan, 
Organizational Capacity, and Work Plan) should be no longer than 
20 pages. Is it 20 pages in total, or 20 pages for each of the three 
components?

• Applicants applying for Components 1 and 2 will submit a maximum 20-page 
application.

• Applicants applying for Components 1, 2, and 3 will submit a maximum 30-
page application. Work Plans are included in the page limits. Budgets are 
not included in the page limits. 8



Are there going to be standard workplan, budget templates, and 
narratives for this grant put forth by the Program?

• Yes, the division has provided workplan templates that are available for 
reference on the VH webpage.
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Sample Combined Evaluation & Workplan
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Sample Combined Evaluation & Workplan
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Sample Combined Evaluation & Workplan
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Sample Combined Evaluation & Workplan cont’d



Are there three SF424As required as well as three budgets?
• No, only one form SF424A will be required for submission. Section B of the 

SF424A will accommodate up to 4 budgets.
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Sample SF424A, Section B (all components)
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Sample Budget Guidance



When will applicants be notified if opt-out strategies and 
activities are approved?

• Applicants will be notified of approved activities in the Notice of Award 
(NOA), estimated in May 2021.
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Is there an email designed for questions that come up during the 
writing of the NOFO?

• While CDC cannot provide assistance in the development of grant 
applications, general questions should be directed to 
DVH_FOA@cdc.gov. All questions and responses will be available and 
posted on DVH’s Viral Hepatitis webpage.
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mailto:DVH_FOA@cdc.gov


For metric 1.2.3.a (90% of cases reported within 90 days of case 
investigation date). What if cases are not investigated at all? Should 
they be included in the denominator?

• The goal is for 90% of cases to be reported within 90 days of the jurisdiction 
receiving the first report, e.g., a positive laboratory result received via 
electronic laboratory reporting. 

• Cases may be classified initially based on available information, for example, 
by an automated algorithm, and reported within 90 days on this basis. If 
further investigated later, the case classification may be revised in a 
subsequent notification to CDC. 

• Consultation with the Surveillance Officer assigned to the jurisdiction may 
provide further guidance based on the jurisdiction's specific case reporting 
laws and regulations.
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What is the timeline for the full implementation of the Hepatitis 
Message Mapping Guide?

• Hepatitis Message Mapping Guide is available for implementation. 
Jurisdictions progress through phases of implementation (pilot, receiving 
technical assistance, onboarding, and production).

• October 2020 issue of NMI Notes indicates that 6 states are receiving 
technical assistance for hepatitis, 2 are onboarding, and 23 are in 
production. 

• The NNDSS Modernization Initiative FAQ https://www.cdc.gov/nmi/faq.html
provides the following information about the Message Mapping Guide 
timeline for implementation, under the section “Retirement of the Legacy 
NNDSS Portfolio” (https://www.cdc.gov/nmi/faq.html#Retirement):
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https://www.cdc.gov/nmi/news.html
https://www.cdc.gov/nmi/faq.html
https://www.cdc.gov/nmi/faq.html#Retirement


Does CDC have a final cut-off date when it will no longer accept 
NETSS files?

• "Right now, we do not have a firm timeline for how long we will continue to 
accept NETSS messages once MVPS is able to accept HL7 messages for a 
condition

• States should expect to complete the transition within 12–18 months after 
MVPS is able to accept data sent by using the new MMG.

• Jurisdictions are encouraged to begin implementing case notifications based 
upon new MMGs as they are finalized. 

• The Health Information Systems component of the Epidemiology and 
Laboratory Capacity (ELC) Cooperative Agreement requires demonstrated 
progress toward the implementation of case notifications based upon the 
new MMGs.”
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How does CDC advise measuring the hepatitis B care cascade when 
treatment is not recommended for everyone?

• Guidance for measuring the hepatitis B care cascade will be developed in 
collaboration with jurisdictions and national partner organizations.

22



Strategy 1.2 addresses acute hepatitis B and acute and chronic 
hepatitis C, but one of the short-term outcomes speaks to perinatal 
hepatitis C and chronic hepatitis B. At the same time, strategy 1.3 
addresses chronic hepatitis B and perinatal hepatitis C. Under which 
strategy should applicants detail their plans for chronic hepatitis B 
and perinatal hepatitis C?

• The Strategy 1.2 short term outcome to increase public health reporting of chronic 
hepatitis B and perinatal hepatitis C supports activities to increase reporting from 
providers to the jurisdiction, and from the jurisdiction to CDC. 

• Strategy 1.3 addresses monitoring, that is, use of the surveillance data for chronic 
hepatitis B and perinatal hepatitis C to describe case distribution and trends 
geographically, demographically, and by risk factors, to inform public health action. 

• Applicants should detail activities for chronic hepatitis B and perinatal hepatitis C 
surveillance under the relevant strategy.
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Page 27 of NOFO states "Local health department applicants are 
required to submit a letter of agreement / MOU between the 
appropriate state and local health department delegating authority 
for surveillance to the local health department and detailing how 
surveillance data will be reported to CDC. Do LHDs need to submit 
surveillance data directly to CDC or just describe how surveillance 
data flows from local to state to CDC?

• The application should describe how the LHD and SHD will collaborate, and 
how data will be submitted to CDC, within the laws and regulations of the 
state and local jurisdictions, and authority of the LHD and SHD for notifying 
CDC of viral hepatitis cases.
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Component 2.1, Outcome 2.1.3. refers to increased HCV and/or HBV 
testing in health care systems. Is there a specific definition 
applicants should use for what qualifies as a health care system?

• The PS21-2103 NOFO, page 81, provides a list of definitions. The definition 
of health systems are organizations of people, institutions, and resources 
that deliver health care services to meet the health needs of target 
populations. The specific definition of a health care system evolves over 
time; example definitions are available on the Agency for Healthcare and 
Research Quality (AHRQ) website. https://www.ahrq.gov/chsp/chsp-
reports/resources-for-understanding-health-systems/defining-health-
systems.htm
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https://www.ahrq.gov/chsp/chsp-reports/resources-for-understanding-health-systems/defining-health-systems.htm


Can funds from Component 2 be used for provider trainings to 
design and offer CME courses where a state and a city within the 
state apply for funding, but surveillance is mostly handled by the 
State; can the city applicant defer some of the Component 1 
outcomes to the state applicant?

• Yes, funds can be used for provider trainings and CME courses and the 
applicant needs to explain it clearly in the budget narrative/justification.

• Local health department applicants are required to submit a letter of 
agreement/MOU between the appropriate state and local health 
department delegating authority and provide details on the activities that 
will be conducted.
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Does the service bundle for component 3 have required elements? 
Do we have to include all items on the NOFO list? There is a 
challenge with syringe services programs (SSPs) because of laws 
regarding them in our state.

• Yes, the PWID service bundle does have required elements. 
• The PWID service bundle should include access (directly or through referral) 

for all the elements. 
• For more detailed information applicant may refer to Page 24 of the NOFO.
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Our determination of need (DON) was approved in January 2020. Do 
we have to submit a request each year or will that response be 
sufficient for the PS21-2103 NOFO?

• Once a jurisdiction receives a CDC approval of DON there is no need for 
reapproval. However, a jurisdiction that does not have a DON in place can 
submit/resubmit an application with new supporting evidence justifying the 
need.
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Is it permissible to offer incentives to clients participating in 
Components 3.1, 2.2 and 2.3?

• Yes, it is permissible for the recipient to offer non-cash incentives to clients 
participating in PS21-2103 Component 2.2, 2.3, and 3.1 activities.

• Recipients will be expected to track the incentives given. There should be a 
log or record showing when, where and how much each gift card cost, 
notating who the gift cards were issued to, the date and then signature of 
the persons receiving the incentive.

• Gift cards should be vendor specific. limiting the use for general purpose 
purchases (avoiding AMEX/VISA/Master Card gift cards). All gift cards 
amounts should be targeted at $5 and $10 and should not exceed a $25 cap.
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For more information, contact CDC
1-800-CDC-INFO (232-4636)
TTY:  1-888-232-6348    www.cdc.gov

The findings and conclusions in this report are those of the authors and do not necessarily represent the 
official position of the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention.

For questions, please email DVH_FOA@cdc.gov. 
Additional information and resources may be found at 

https://www.cdc.gov/hepatitis/policy/FO-CDC-RFA-PS21-2103.htm

Thank you!

mailto:DVH_FOA@cdc.gov
https://www.cdc.gov/hepatitis/policy/FO-CDC-RFA-PS21-2103.htm
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